
    NPT/CONF.2015/PC.II/SR.17

Preparatory Committee for the 2015 Review 
Conference of the Parties to the Treaty on the 
Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons 

 
Distr.: General 
31 May 2013 
 
Original: English 

 

 

This record is subject to correction. 

Corrections should be submitted in one of the working languages. They should be set forth in a 
memorandum and also incorporated in a copy of the record. They should be sent as soon as 
possible to the Chief of the Documents Control Unit (srcorrections@un.org). 

Corrected records will be reissued electronically on the Official Document System of the United 
Nations (http://documents.un.org/). 

13-35084 (E) 
*1335084*  
 

Second session  
Geneva, 22 April-3 May 2013  
 

Summary record of the 17th meeting* 
Held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva, on Friday, 3 May 2013, at 10 a.m.  
 

 President: Mr. Feruta . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (Romania) 
 
 
 

Contents 
 

 

Adoption of the final report and recommendations of the Preparatory Committee to 
the 2015 Review Conference of the Parties to the Treaty on the Non-Proliferation of 
Nuclear Weapons on its second session  

Closure of the session  

__________________ 

 *  No summary records were issued for the 7th to 16th meetings.  
 



NPT/CONF.2015/PC.II/SR.17  
 

13-35084 2 
 

The meeting was called to order at 10.10 a.m.  
 
 

Adoption of the final report and recommendations 
of the Preparatory Committee to the 2015 Review 
Conference of the Parties to the Treaty on the 
Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons on its second 
session (NPT/CONF.2015/PC.II/CRP.3)  
 

1. The Chair drew attention to the report of the 
Preparatory Committee on the work of its second 
session, which was contained in NPT/CONF.2015/ 
PC.II/12, and suggested that the Preparatory Committee 
should adopt it paragraph by paragraph.  
 

Paragraphs 1 to 4  
 

2. Paragraphs 1 to 4 were adopted.  
 

Paragraph 5  
 

3. The Chair said that the following sentence would 
be added at the end of paragraph 5: “On 29 April 2013, 
Egypt announced that it would not participate in the 
rest of the second session of the Preparatory 
Committee.”  

4. Paragraph 5, as orally amended, was adopted.  
 

Paragraph 6  
 

5. The Chair said that after the conclusion of the 
session, the Secretariat would provide information for 
paragraph 6 on the number of meetings held by the 
Committee and the meetings for which there would be 
summary records.  

6. Paragraph 6 was adopted.  
 

Paragraphs 7 to 9 

7. Paragraphs 7 to 9 were adopted.  
 

Paragraph 10 
 

8. Mr. Román-Morey (Peru) suggested that the 
name of his country, Peru, should be included in 
parentheses after his name, to be consistent with the 
rest of the document.  

9.  Paragraph 10, as orally amended, was adopted.  
 

Paragraphs 11 and 12  
 

10. Paragraphs 11 and 12 were adopted.  
 

Paragraph 13 
 

11. The Chair said that after the conclusion of the 
session, the Secretariat would provide information for 
inclusion in paragraph 13 on the number of meetings 
devoted to substantive discussion under agenda item 6.  

12.  Paragraph 13 was adopted.  
 

Paragraphs 14 to 18 
 

13. Paragraphs 14 to 18 were adopted.  
 

Paragraph 19  
 

14. The Chair said that after the conclusion of the 
session, paragraph 19, which contained the list of all 
documents submitted during the second session, would 
be updated to include all documents submitted before 
the conclusion of the session.  

15.  Paragraph 19 was adopted.  
 

Paragraph 20  
 

16. The Chair said that paragraph 20 contained a list 
of the delegations to the second session of the 
Preparatory Committee. Any late corrections would be 
reflected in an addendum and added to the list.  

17.  Paragraph 20 was adopted.  

18.  The report of the Preparatory Committee as a 
whole, as amended, was adopted.  

19.  The Chair said that he had sought to address 
issues in a non-confrontational way and provide a way 
forward, based on the principles of openness, 
inclusiveness, transparency and objectivity. The 
Chair’s factual summary accurately reflected the 
discussions that had taken place. The main concern was 
to make sure that the non-proliferation regime was not 
undermined and that the Treaty on the 
Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons should remain 
the cornerstone of international security and stability.  
 

Closure of the session  
 

20.  Mr. Solanieh (Islamic Republic of Iran), 
speaking on behalf of the countries of the Non-Aligned 
Movement that were States parties to the Treaty on the 
Non-Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons, said that while 
the Chair’s factual summary was his full responsibility, 
it should reflect the views that had been expressed by 
delegations in a balanced and accurate manner. 
However, on some issues, it reflected a consensus that 



 NPT/CONF.2015/PC.II/SR.17
 

3 13-35084 
 

did not, in fact, exist. The Non-Aligned Movement had 
expressed views that had not been duly and factually 
reflected in the summary. It was the view of the 
Non-Aligned Movement that the Chair’s factual 
summary had no status and should not be 
acknowledged in or attached to the report of the second 
session of the Preparatory Committee.  

21.  The Chair said that it had not been his intention 
to attach the summary to the report, which had just 
been adopted without the summary attached. It was 
identified as a working paper in both the report and the 
records of the session.  

22.  Ms. Chin (Singapore) sought confirmation that 
the Chair’s factual summary would have the status of a 
working paper.  

23.  The Chair said that the summary was indeed a 
working paper.  

24.  Mr. Grinevich (Belarus) said that, regrettably, 
his delegation’s draft proposal had not been included in 
the Chair’s factual summary. The draft proposal read as 
follows: “It was stressed that it was important for 
nuclear-weapon States to respect their existing 
obligations to non-nuclear-weapon States, given in 
return for their voluntary denunciation of the nuclear 
weapons option and for joining the Non-Proliferation 
Treaty.”  

25. Mr. Tun (Myanmar), speaking on behalf of the 
Association of Southeast Asian Nations (ASEAN), said 
that the States parties to the Treaty on the Southeast 
Asian Nuclear-Weapon-Free Zone hoped that the 
protocol thereto and other related documents would be 
signed, without reservations, as soon as possible.  

26. Mr. Minty (South Africa), speaking on behalf of 
a group of States parties concerned about the 
humanitarian impact of nuclear weapons, said that 
there was a growing realization that humanitarian 
concerns should be at the core of all reflections, 
decisions and actions during the current review cycle 
and beyond. It was therefore encouraging that the 
catastrophic humanitarian consequences of nuclear 
weapons had been firmly established on the 
international agenda. As all States parties had agreed 
on the need to ensure that such weapons were never 
used again, they must do their utmost to achieve 
nuclear disarmament, including through meeting the 
objectives of the Treaty. Full implementation of the 
2010 action plan and previous outcomes must not be 
postponed any further.  

27. Ms. Issa (Syrian Arab Republic) said that the 
Chair’s factual summary lacked objectivity and was not 
an official document.  

28. Mr. Simon-Michel (France) said that, by 
definition, the Chair’s factual summary could not go 
into the details of the various positions expressed by 
States parties. It was nonetheless a comprehensive and 
objective reflection of the discussions.  

29. Ms. Jáquez Huacuja (Mexico) requested further 
clarification regarding the status of the Chair’s factual 
summary. It was her delegation’s understanding that 
the summary was the responsibility of the Chair. 
However, that had been cast into doubt by the inclusion 
of the Chair’s factual summary among the documents 
listed in paragraph 19 of the report which were before 
the Committee during the session.  

30. Mr. Wu (China) noted that the Chair had 
submitted his factual summary in his personal capacity 
and that it had not been adopted by consensus.  

31. Mr. Solanieh (Islamic Republic of Iran) said that 
it was indeed a mistake to rely on the Chair’s factual 
summary for details of the positions of various States 
parties. The practice of producing a Chair’s factual 
summary only created a working environment that was 
not conducive to favourable outcomes and should be 
discontinued.  

32. Mr. Minty (South Africa) said that if, as had been 
stated, the Chair’s factual summary was a working 
paper, the Chair should indicate whether it would be 
issued with a working paper reference number. It was 
the lack of such a number that was causing confusion 
for some delegations. At the previous meeting, the 
analogous document had had such a number.  

33. The Chair said that the report did not contain a 
paragraph saying that the States parties took note of the 
Chair’s factual summary, which had the same status as 
any other working paper. It was merely a document of 
the conference. There had been similar cases at past 
sessions.  

34. After an exchange of courtesies, in which 
representatives of Switzerland, the European Union, 
the United Kingdom, Australia, Lebanon, the Republic 
of Korea, Tunisia, Peru and Iran (the Islamic Republic 
of) took part, the Chair declared the second session of 
the meeting of the Preparatory Committee closed.  

The meeting rose at 1.20 p.m.  



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


